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The Phillips Block, built in 1892, reflects Victorian design characteristics
for commercial structures during the late nineteenth century. This three story
building with a high basement utilizes a reddish brick of the running bond type
and flush bonding, and other decorative brick work appears including lapped,
grooved, indented and diagonally exposed brick ends. These ornamental devices
are found in the cornice and panels above and below the second and third story
windows.

Another material present is Sioux Quartzite, an indigenous stone, which serves
as:the:foundation: and the walls of the basement. Sandstone appears on the win-
~dow sills.including two: decorated ones, and also in the archs on the front (east)
facade. Polished granite pillars are employed on the front and north facades;

the prior are square and short and the latter are rounded and short.

Visually the building has changed 1ittle and remains in good condition despite
it being vacant for several years. It occupies a corner lot and is rectangu-
lar in shape with fifty feet by seventy five feet dimensions; it is three bays
wide and six bays long. A portion of the front facade is cast iron and the
Towar level has not been modernized, as is the case in most older commercial
buildings.

The building's windows are either flattopped or segmental with radiating vous-
soirs and most are double hung with two 1ights. The second and third story
fenestrations are encased by a brick decorative device either singly or coupled
with a-mullion:division. Three large segmental windows with top 1ights are
located at the building's northeast corner. Five entries appear on the main
level: : three in the-front facades'recess, one on the north side and one to

the rear facade.

Another feature of the building is that the northeast corner projects slightly
from the building. Also the south facade adjoins another building constructed
around 1916, and across the street to the north is the 1890 Minnehaha County
Courthouse. The rear of the building shows the structures only major altera-
tion with stuccoing of the wall.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Phillips Block is .important becguse it is-one of: the few bu11d1ngs left
that show the development of nineteenth: century commerce ini.the state's largest
city, Sioux Falls. Also, the structure has architectural significance because
it is one of the better unaltered examples of Victorian commercial architecture
in South Dakota. Another important consideration is that the new owners plan
to revitalize and restore the building which could lead to the rebirth of an
older business section in the city.

Andrew C. Phillips had the building constructed between 1891 and 1892 and he
called it the Law Exchange Block. Because Phillips built the structure across
the street from the Minnehaha County Courthouse it served as an ideal location
for a legal center. Four years after his death in 1893 his wife Imogine Phillips
renamed the building the Phillips Block in Andrew's memory.

Between 1897 and 1908 the Scottish American Mortgage Company and R. F. Pettigrew,
former U.S. Senator, owned the structure: ;Then the Queen City Fire Insurance
Company purchased and occupied it for the next fourty years changing the struc-
ture's name to the Queen City Building. This company was one of the state's
most important Insurance organizations and invested considerably in mortgage
loans, farms and industrial property.

In the 1950's the 'building became known as the Soo Hotel and a variety of busi-
nesses occupied the lower level. Then in 1977 the city of Sioux Falls bought
the structure and sold it later that year to a private company. These new owners
are planning to restore the structure's exterior and because of these plans

and the building's commercial and architectural significance the Phillips Block
should be placed on the National Register of Historic Places.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The nominated property occupies Lot 18 Block 12, J. L. Phillips addition to Sioux
Falls and is roughly 50' by 100' in size.
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